ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MONDAY, APRIL 23, 2012
Members Present: Mr. Darrow, Ms. Marteney, Mr. Baroody, Mr. Maskov, Ms. Calarco, Mr. Kilmer and Mr. Tamburrino 
Staff Present: Mr. Fusco, Ms. Jensen and Mr. Hicks

APPLICATIONS APPROVED: 6 Dennis Street, 19 Myrtle Avenue, 54 Osborne Street, 92 Clark Street and 102 N. Lewis Street
APPLICATION TABLED: 30-32 Burt Avenue 

Mr. Darrow: Good evening. Welcome to the City of Auburn Zoning Board of Appeals. I’m Board Chairman Edward Darrow. Please if you have any cell phones or pagers, if you could silence them or turn them off. Tonight we will be hearing 30-32 Burt Ave, 6 Dennis Street, 19 Myrtle Ave, 54 Osborne Street, 92 Clark Street, 102 North Lewis Street. Counsel?
Mr. Fusco: The first matter on our agenda are the minutes of March 26th. As some of you know, sometimes speaking into these microphones are very, very difficult for our recording system to capture and it makes it difficult to take accurate minutes of our meetings. 
Specifically, in the minutes from last month, we’ve got a number of places in the transcript where the tape goes inaudible. So what I would ask you to do, given the fact that we had a matter on our agenda which could well go to litigation, I don’t know whether it will or won’t, just as a matter of good practice if what we could do before we approve the minutes, and we may have to do it…we will have to do it next month. If all of you could go through your minutes and try to fill in the inaudibles where you were speaking, or perhaps the person next to you if you can help out, and then contact the secretary to try to fill in those blanks, that would be very helpful to me in a Court of law defending your actions. Again, mindful of the fact that the minutes did have those holes in them, when you speak tonight or henceforth, try to get close to the microphone so that the tape recorder can pick up what we’re saying and let’s for this one month go back through and try to fill in our own gaps, get a hold of either the secretary or me and we’ll look to the approval of the March minutes in our May meeting. Thank you.

Mr. Darrow: Hearing that from the counsel, we table our minutes until our next session…excuse me, table the adoption of our minutes.
_______________________________________________________

30-32 Burt Avenue
Mr. Darro: 30 to 32 Burt Ave, would you please come to the podium. Give your name and address. Please speak into the microphone and tell us what you’d like to do.
Ms. Sullivan: Sasandra Sullivan at 32 Burt Ave. Ann Sullivan, 32 Burt Ave. Okay. We were trying to call for lawyers, a lot of them said no, ended up calling your office and going to your office. You were out of town so they gave me a lawyer’s name and number. He asked me…
Ms. A. Sullivan: A week and a half to hear back from your office.

Mr. Fusco: I wouldn’t have taken your case. I represent this Board.

Ms. Sullivan: No, I know it. I think you said that you could give us a name of somebody so why we called your office.

Mr. Fusco: Okay and did you want me to put the name of three people on a piece of paper tonight and table your application? I’m more than willing to do that.

Ms. Sullivan: I have David Tehan…

Mr. Fusco: David Tehan is very skilled for this. Yes.

Ms. Sullivan: He told me to ask you guys to table it for another month and call him tomorrow.

Mr. Fusco: Well I don’t want to give you just one for reasons of not wanting to steer business to any one lawyer or not to any one lawyer. Let me give you the name of three or four lawyers that I know are experienced in this particular area of law. I’ll put them on a piece of paper, if you want to come up here in a second, I’ll hand it to you and I would recommend the matter be tabled until they’re able to hire an attorney that is skilled in use variance matter. Thank you.

Mr. Baroody: Motion to table 30-32 Burt Ave until next month’s meeting.
Mr. Darrow: We have a motion, do we have a second?

Mr. Tamburrino: Second.

Mr. Darrow: All those in favor, aye.

Board: Aye. (Unanimous)

Mr. Darrow: Motion carried. 30-32 Burt Ave will be tabled to our next session which will be May 28th. 
Mr. Darrow: Next we have 6 Dennis Street

Mr. Fusco: Let’s just let the record reflect I’ve written the name of five attorneys on this piece of paper, all five of them I know to be skilled in this particular area of law. Any one of them that you pick will be fine by the…will I’m sure do a very good job for you.

Mr. Darrow: Thank you.

_______________________________________________________

6 Dennis Street
Mr. Darrow: Could you please give your name and address and tell us what you’d like to do.
Ms. Inari: Mindy Inari, 6 Dennis Street. Scott Harris, 6 Dennis Street. We’d like to expand a driveway. The driveway as it stands now is placed *inaudible* three feet wide. We would like to go a total of 27 feet wide. Right now it’s like a driveway and-a-half so no matter if you put two cars in the driveway, somebody would always park on the grass. We bought a camper so that also would…that the three cars wide and all we’re asking is to expand it so it sits all three vehicles in the driveway.
Mr. Darrow: Do you have anything else to add. Any questions from the Board please?

Mr. Tamburrino: I just want to be clear, do you want to expand a driveway by eight feet?

Ms. Inari: On the left side…

Mr. Tamburrino: On the left side when you’re facing the house.

Ms. Inari: Yes.

Mr. Tamburrino: Okay, just…

Ms. Inari: There’s a drawing of it…and two feet on the other side.

Ms. Marteney: For a total of 10 feet.

Ms. Inari: Yes.

Mr. Darrow: I’m a little confused by the drawing you submitted. Is any of this driveway going to become part of front yard parking or is it simply the 7 foot in area variance for the width that you need? Mr. Hicks?

Ms: Inari: We have 58 foot of grass which is still the front yard. It would not…it’s not really front yard parking because when I *inaudible* about the variance, they said that it was not considered…that would be a separate variance that we would need. 
Mr. Darrow: Correct. I’m just want to make sure with Mr. Hicks because the drawing looks like some of it’s going to be concert to front yard parking.

Ms. Inari: There’s picture too. I did…

Mr. Hicks: Mr. Chairman, the last part of your package has pictures from the front of the house. You’ll see that there’s a man port…*inaudible*

Mr. Darrow: I didn’t get any pictures. 
Mr. Hicks: There’s an overhead door and a man door to the left. This is an attached garage situation and the two-foot variance or the two foot to the left is part of the overall width and that is not in front of the house itself, it’s in front of the attached garage so it would not be front-yard parking.

Mr. Darrow: Okay.

Mr. Baroody: So it would be 8 foot on the side that’s not going to be for parking.

Ms. Inari: It would 8 foot on the left. It borders the neighbors hedgerow. 
Mr. Darrow: Okay then, so we’re all clear, it’s strictly a 7 foot area variance to exceed the 20 foot allowed maximum width. 
Mr. Hicks: That’s correct Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Darrow: Thank you. Any other questions from Board members? You may be seated.

Ms. Inari: Thank you.

Mr. Darrow: Is there anybody here to speak for or against this applicant? Is there anyone present wishing to speak for or against this applicant? Seeing none, hearing none, I will close the public portion, we’re going to discuss it amongst ourselves.

Mr. Tamburrino: I went down that street and have visited the neighborhood…I live near there, I took a walk down the street and other properties have those double driveways. It wouldn’t change the character of the neighborhood at all.

Ms. Marteney: Almost every house has a larger than one-car-wide driveway.

Mr. Tamburrino: Yup.

Ms. Marteney: What I like is it’s not making the front yard parking. In light of the fact that it’s not making the front yard parking, I’m fine.

Mr. Darrow: The Chair will entertain a motion.

Mr. Tamburrino: I would like to make a motion that we grant Scott Harris of 6 Dennis Street an area variance of 7 feet over the allowable maximum 20 foot width for their front driveway.

Mr. Darrow: We have a motion, do we have a second?

Mr. Moskov: Second.

Mr. Darrow: We have a second. Roll call please.

VOTING IN FAVOR: Ms. Marteney, Mr. Baroody, Mr. Moskov, Ms. Calarco, Mr. Kilmer, Mr. Tamburrino and Mr. Darrow.

Mr. Darrow: Your variance has been approved.
_______________________________________________________

19 Myrtle Avenue
Mr. Darrow: Next we have 19 Myrtle Ave.
Mr. Baroody: The next meeting will be the 21st, the 28th is Memorial Day.

Ms. Jensen: That was sent out in the calendar that went out the first of the year.

Mr. Darrow: Thank you. The next meeting is the 21st. 
19 Myrtle Ave. Would you please state your name for the record and what you’d like to do.

Mr. Thurston: Mr. Chairman, my name is David Thurston and my client, Mr. Richard Rouse. Good evening rest of the members of the Board.

Relatively speaking, I guess to put it simply, my client has two properties that he owns adjacent to each other, one at 19 and one at 21 Myrtle Ave. One is presently a very odd rounded shape parcel and one is very narrow triangular shaped parcel. What my client is requesting is an area variance to allow him to now square off both parcels so that they look like normal parcels *inaudible*…as you travel up and down. We’re here for an area variance because the resulting new lot line at least when you create a setback and *inaudible* on the side. You should have maps to pass with the application. If you look at the map, the current boundary line is dotted line that runs directly through the middle of the driveway, toolshed and back to one at the very top of the map. The proposed lot line will be now the solid line running almost perfectly square to the two lots. We do have to have the jog in there because of the easement in the driveway on the 21 Myrtle Ave property. So, in order to capture the driveway that currently sits on 21 Myrtle Avenue, we’re looking to have that jog and the jog does create a side yard issue for us. But I think the net effect is going to be too much premier parcels on Myrtle Ave. Richard and I were talking earlier and for the life of us we’re trying to figure out why it got to the small triangle ever ended up there. I guess the theory is that at one point years ago these parcels were also owned by one person and then conveyed to these two kids, one of whom had more children than the other. Apparently that required a larger yard for the yard with more kids to be able to play. So the best we can up with as far as why this ever turned out this way but hopefully, with your approval, we will rectify this now and in the future. 
Mr. Fusco: There is no house on Lot 21 or what the map shows is…

Mr. Tehan: There is a house on Lot 21.

Mr. Fusco: There is a house.

Mr. Rouse: I presently live there.

Mr. Darrow: Excuse me, could you please speak into the microphone?

Mr. Rouse: I presently live there.

Mr. Fusco: Okay.

Mr. Rouse: I’ve been there for 37 years.

Mr. Fusco: And who lives at 19?

Mr. Rouse: Right now I’ve got it rented out. I can’t sell it until I get the okay on this to see what I’m going to do.
Mr. Tehan: The house at 19 was foreclosed I think two years ago now. Two years ago. Mr. Rouse bought it at foreclosure in the hopes that surely one day we could try to square this off and make them both a lot more useable parcels. Actually, back in ’94 I think it was he tried to do the same thing, offered to purchase the same slice we are looking for now from the woman who resided there. She agreed to sell it but unfortunately she, at that time, her house was mortgaged and the bank wouldn’t release the sliver to convey over so now 18 years later we’re back.

Mr. Darrow: Any questions from the Board members?

Mr. Kilmer: The driveway between the two parcels, is that a shared driveway or which one does that belong to?

Mr. Rouse: I own the front, they own the back.

Mr. Tehan: There’s a separate driveway that serves 19. It’s not shown on the map but that would be on south side of 19, there’s already a driveway there. So the driveway you see on Number 21 Lot would be solely serving 21.

Mr. Kilmer: Got you. But as it stands right now, that driveway is partly on the property of 19 and partly on 21.

Mr. Tehan: Right.

Mr. Kilmer: Okay.

Mr. Darrow: Any other questions from Board members? You may be seated, thank you.

Is there anyone present wishing to speak for or against 19 Myrtle Ave? Anyone present wishing to speak for or against 19 Myrtle Ave. Seeing none, hearing none, I will close the public portion, we will discuss this amongst ourselves.

Mr. Moskov: To do this it seems in my mind to improve the character of the neighborhood.

Mr. Darrow: Yeah.

Mr. Tamburrino: I couldn’t believe it when I saw it.

Mr. Darrow: You want to talk about uniqueness. Look at that lot. 
Mr. Tamburrino: It meets the criteria for uniqueness.

Ms. Calarco: Absolutely.

Mr. Baroody: I’d like to make a motion that we grant Richard Rouse of 19 Myrtle Ave an area variance of four and-a-half feet of the required seven feet, seven foot line setback on the north and an area variance…do we have to vote on these separate counsel?

Mr. Darrow: Counsel? Can we bundle them?

Mr. Baroody: Do we have to vote on these separately?

Mr. Darrow: Do you want to have them separate?

Mr. Fusco: You can put them into two separate or one…that doesn’t trouble me. Make your motion contingent upon the eventual subdivision approval by the Planning Board because the line will have to be moved.
Mr. Baroody: I make the motion based on the subdivision approval that we grant Richard Rouse, 19 Myrtle Ave, Auburn, New York two variances. An area variance of four and-a-half feet of the required seven foot side line setback to the north and an area variance of 1.99 feet of the required 50 foot lot width, it is now 48.01 feet.

Mr. Darrow: Before I entertain a second, counsel did you want to readdress?

Mr. Tehan: Mr. Chairman, if I could, I spoke with Planning regarding this issue as far as the subdivision approval and Planning told me that they would be…they had the authority to do this as a lot line adjustment as opposed to going through subdivision approval. So, if possible, could you…

Mr. Fusco: One way or the other then.

Mr. Tehan: Yeah.

Mr. Fusco: Amend the motion that if they can…because there is that administrative procedure for a lot line adjustment. So, if it’s done administratively or by the Planning Board, either way would satisfy the condition as far as I’m concerned.

Mr. Darrow: So may the motion show the amendment that it may be administratively subdivided. I will now entertain a second.

Mr. Kilmer: Second.

Mr. Darrow: We have a second on the motion. 
VOTING IN FAVOR: Ms. Marteney, Mr. Baroody, Mr. Moskov, Ms. Calarco, Mr. Kilmer, Mr. Tamburrino and Mr. Darrow.

Mr. Darrow: Your motion has been approved. Thank you.
Mr. Tehan: Thank you.

_______________________________________________________

54 Osborne Street
Mr. Darrow: Next, 54 Osborne Street. If you could you please state your name and tell us what you’d like to do.
Ms. Altrum: I’m Sandy Altrum, 54 Osborne. I’m looking for a variance for my pool that was installed in late August of last year. I didn’t install it. I bought the proper permits, I paid the money for the pool, they sent pool installers and they measured it out and they sent they sent their inground installers, although it was an above ground. They measured it out and all of it fit just right. It had no lean against one way or the other. The installers showed up at the premises, I came back, I said hey, this is off the orange line by a good foot. Oh don’t worry about, we know what we’re doing, we’re professionals. Okay. So I called my electrician to come and start doing the electrician work, he put the tape to it, he called the City…I’m not sure when the guys came up and said we’d better not do this, it’s too close to the house, 8 and-a-half foot instead of 10.

Mr. Darrow: Did you get a permit to install the pool?

Ms. Altrum: I did. 
Mr. Darrow: Okay.

Mr. Altrum: I did, I did everything the pool company required…

Mr. Darrow: They just put it in the wrong spot.

Ms. Altrum: …I could buy it, they pretty much put it in the wrong spot.

Mr. Darrow: Okay.

Ms. Altrum: Now I got it filled, we used it the end of the summer, I’m waiting to put the fences around it and the deck on it and get the proper electric on it but everything’s been at a standstill since they came off the 8 and-a-half foot. 
Mr. Darrow: Okay. Any questions from the Board.

Mr. Tamburrino: Did you call the company that installed the pool and ask for a…

Ms. Altrum: I asked for a refund, yes. I asked them to come and take your stuff out of here and called a reputable or a different pool company. They’re willing to come and move it but they want to charge me again, plus the water…it’s looking like $1,200 for a $2,800 pool. I mean, there’s only two adults that lives in the house. Nobody’s going to be jumping off roofs, it’s at ground level, nobody’s going to be doing any crazy shenanigans...it’s two adults, myself and my sister. Once in a while we’ll have the family over but, you know, never without supervision. 
Mr. Darrow: Any other questions from the Board members? 
Mr. Tambirromo: I guess I’m confused. It was an error obviously, it’s off by a foot and a half and you called this company and they would not drain the pool and move the structure.

Ms. Altrum: Well, they will drain and move it but I have to pay for the water again and have to pay for somebody’s time to move it.

Mr. Tamburrino: Okay, so the company…you’re in for the labor and of course you have to pay for the water. 
Ms. Altrum: They’ve sold me a filter that isn’t even up to code and I’ve got to have that off, change the *inaudible*. I just think that the pool company that I brought it from is not very reputable.

Mr. Darrow: What do you mean by they sold you a filter that’s not up to code?

Ms. Altrum: Well, I can’t remember the way the numbers go but the electrician says that in order to add the twisting lock electric that needs to be on that, it already has the 110 electric so it has like 12 gauge wire and he’s got to put 16 gauge which could cause a meltdown or it might burst…I’m not sure which way….
Mr. Darrow: They all come that way and then the electrician has to change the width.

Ms. Altrum: Great but when he *inaudible* into the meter loaded, that’s a lot of wire through 110 which is 16 gauge or 12 gauge, one or the other.

Mr. Darrow: 12 gauge.

Ms. Altrum: When he comes from the house which is whatever gauge wire and puts those two together, it’s really not proper from what my electrician tells me and he’s pretty notable in Auburn. 
Mr. Darrow: Okay, well that really doesn’t have anything to do with the variance itself. Any other questions by the Board members? 
Mr. Moskov: One more clarification, I’m sorry. They put the pool in the wrong spot and they’re saying that you will have to pay them for moving it even though they messed up?

Ms. Altrum: That and I’ll have to refill it which is going to be $500 or $600 worth of water. It’s not cheap anymore to fill that.

Mr. Moskov: Right.

Ms. Altrum: Not to mention that it takes me like five days to fill it up with my City tap…I don’t have that much garden hose. I live up on top of the hill and we never can get water pressure. It does cost a great deal to fill it.

Mr. Darrow: What size pool is it?

Ms. Altrum: It’s 18 foot…

Mr. Darrow: 18 foot round?

Ms. Altrum: It’s supposed to be four feet deep but they filled in the center and it’s only 28..it’s just…I really don’t want to buy my property once *inaudible* like that. I’ve gone round and round. I’ve had lawyers look at, I’ve had lawyers call. They don’t entertain for you know, to anything that’s feasible. I feel that they made a mistake putting it in. They should replace the water too. It’s where I’m standing at with that. And everybody could be happy if we just sue…get a little variance and leave it as it is. 
Mr. Darrow: Okay. Any other questions? You may be seated.

Is there anybody here to speak for or against 54 Osborne Street? Anyone present to speak for or against 54 Osborne Street? Seeing none, hearing none, I will close the public portion, we will discuss it amongst ourselves.

Ms. Calarco: I would say this is hardship cost on her own but I don’t really that’s the case. I think this woman did everything she possibly could…

Mr. Darrow: Yeah. The first thing that she did was get the permit and so when she got the permit she had to give the drawing where it was going to be. Obviously on the drawing it showed it was going to be 10 foot from the house or they would never have issued the permit. So, like you say, she did due diligence and she’s tried to rectify it from what she said by other means.

Ms. Calarco: Exactly.

Mr. Kilmer: You know, the only thing she…the only alternative I see is getting an attorney…
Mr. Baroody: That would cost a lot…

Ms. Marteney: It would cost…

Mr. Kilmer: It would cost more than the cost of the water and everything, yeah.

Ms. Marteney: I think this is extenuating circumstances.

Mr. Kilmer: It’s not a big setback, it’s only a foot and-a-half.

Mr. Darrow: Yeah.

Ms. Calarco: And there’s a bit of curve in the property too, it’s not as though is coming…if something were to happen, water is not going to come up through the basement of the house or the neighbor’s yard or…

Mr. Tamburrino: There’s a *inaudible* bottom of the pool so there really a point that’s 8 and-a-half foot away…it curves away so.

Mr. Darrow: Exactly.

Mr. Tamburrino: So you don’t really…if it was a rectangular pool, yah maybe it would be more of an issue but a round pool…

Mr. Darrow: Perhaps there’s may be three foot of the circumference that actually encroaches upon the ten foot.

Mr. Tamburrino: Yeah.

Mr. Darrow: The Chair will entertain a motion.

Ms. Calarco: I move that we allow a variance of one and-a-half feet of the required ten foot setback for 54 Osborne Street.

Mr. Darrow: We have a motion, do we have a second?

Mr. Tamburrino: Second.

Mr. Darrow: We have a motion and a second. Roll call.

VOTING IN FAVOR: Ms. Marteney, Mr. Baroody, Mr. Moskov, Ms. Calarco, Mr. Kilmer, Mr. Tamburrino and Mr. Darrow.

Mr. Darrow: Your variance has been approved. Thank you.
Ms. Altrum: Thank you.

_______________________________________________________

92 Clark Street
Mr. Darrow: 92 Clark Street, will you please come to the podium, give your name, address and what you’d like to do.
Clark Street: Good evening, My name Justin Rudgick. I’m a Senior Development Project Manager at Housing Visions

We sent in the application for 92 Clark. Also with me is Michael Molgard with Home King *inaudible* out of Syracuse, New York. We’re here to ask for a variance on 92 Clark Street. But before I get into that, 92 Clark Street is part of the overall neighborhood revitalization project to provide quality affordable housing specifically in the Orchard Street area neighborhood. 
To give you a little bit of background of Housing Visions, Housing Visions which started in the early 1990s when we started a project in Auburn already, it’s been successful. We worked with the City of Auburn to develop that project, since then we’ve worked with the City of Auburn to develop what this project is called, S.E Payne Cornerstone. Housing Visions is a scattered-site urban infill developer which also has construction companies and property management so we’re very integrated organization. The greatest part about that is because we want to be sure that we have quality, not only in our development, but also in our property management too because it is quality affordable housing.
We did specifically choose 92 Clark Street. 92 Clark Street is in an R2 Zone but most importantly we looked at the building. It’s currently, the interior is a dilapidated building. We had an architect and engineer look at that building with the intent to rehab it so we wouldn’t have to request an area variance with it and it was the finding of the architect and the engineer that only essentially one…one and-a-half walls could potentially be saved out of the whole construction so it’s not feasible at that point to really save it. So assuming…we proceeded to ask for it to come out and we’d love have a new construction building. We put very careful consideration to the design of the new construction building to meet the existing footprint of the building so the impact of *inaudible* in that spot would not be exacerbated by us doing new construction. In fact we have been able to, by putting together a quality constructed building with the *inaudible* of a mixed-use building. And, it’s mixed-use in the sense that it’s going to have on-site rental management office and a community space which is including the space for clarification is only going to be open from 8:30 to 5:00 during normal office hours and *inaudible* with the community *inaudible* neighborhood organizations would like to reserve that space, they can do so and make an appointment and open that up for that specific time period. That space is only available for *inaudible* by appointment only.
The second floor will have a one-bedroom apartment. We designed it that way to ensure that we have somebody that’s going to be part of the building to ensure that’s going to be taken care of. It’s not necessarily a superintendent’s site but it’s that way, you know, if you have a light on or whatever it will deter anybody from entering *inaudible*. But, again, the building is going to be new construction, well lighted.
Specifically, we’ve come to the variance…it is an R2 Zone, the minimum lot requires 5,000 square feet, we have 4,851 square feet. The minimum width for new construction is 50 feet, we’re now a non-conforming site which we have 36 feet, 5 inches. The *inaudible* required is 90 feet, we have 32 feet. So we need a variance for, since we’re building on the existing footprint, the back of the building…the back of the building on the right side of the building is built very close to the property line so we need an area variance for a side yard on that specific side. And then the other variance we need is, since it does have a one-bedroom residential unit, we do need a variance for a parking spot because the site is a non-conforming site. We were not able to put in a driveway to put a parking spot in the back of the lot. But Clark Street area is a dead-end street and the City does permit on-street parking and there’s only one part of it *inaudible* dead-end zone…there’s not any parking down there at all so the impact it has on on-street parking is really minimal.
Mr. Darrow: Are there any questions from the Board members? 
Mr. Tamburrino: I have a question. As part of this community room, what about parking for that?
Mr. Rudgick: The parking for the community room…we would have an on-site management office, we advocate having two personnel that we…there would be parking within that area on the street during business hours, then they would leave. During community functions there would only be utilized for that time period. So, for instance, if there was a *inaudible* most of the people live within that neighborhood so I assume most of them would walk but even if they were to drive over in that section, there’s enough parking area right there to really fit 20 plus cars if we so choose to do so. We don’t anticipate that kind of turn out because again, the S.E. Payne Cornerstone Project is part of a comprehensive neighborhood plan in that neighborhood so all of our residents are part of that project *inaudible* walk to the community center. Based on our experience in property management, not every unit requires a full parking…they don’t have a car. So most of our units that we built in some of our existing projects *inaudible* may only need one car per building in a four or five-unit building. The type of *inaudible* they don’t have the need for a car so I think the parking I don’t think would be an issue.
Mr. Tamburrino: The footprint of this new building is identical?

Clark Street: It’s exactly identical for the existing building. It’s smaller actually, the back part of it is.

Mr. Tamburrino: By how much?

Mr. Rudgick: 25 feet. The existing building is right along the sidewalk line and we pulled it back so there’s a 25 foot required setback. *Inaudible*
Mr. Tamburrino: Just one more question…on the back there what things will you utilize it for?

Mr. Rudgick: Lawn space and green space.

Mr. Tamburrino: Green space in the back as well?

Mr. Rudgick: *Inaudible* there would be green space here and between the sidewalk and the front yard lawn. 
Mr. Fusco: A question arose at Planning Board that didn’t get resolved as far as I heard as to whether parking is in fact allowed in that area of Clark Street in front of your building.
Mr. Rudgick: The last time I spoke to Steve Selvek it was his understanding that onstreet parking was permitted.

Mr. Fusco: Do you have anything to demonstrate that because I remember we had Mr. Gilfus, Officer Gilfus, who’s our Traffic Officer at the meeting of the Planning Board where that issue was raised and he didn’t know the answer to it and I’ve not seen the answer from Mr. Selvek. 
Mr. Rudgick: Okay. What was determined at the Planning Board meeting was that they were concerned that that was a designated City turnaround and it was not, according to the records that Steve had looked at it was not a designated City turnaround so if it was designated City turnaround or turnaround area it would have minimized the parking area. Since it’s not a designated turnaround, it’s only a dead-end we could…onstreet parking was permitted. And again, only one part will have residents and *inaudible* two cars will be onsite management office.
Mr. Fusco: The variance only asks for parking for 1 and-a-half cars as I understand the understand the aspect of the variance but the issue that arose at the last public hearing, I see no paperwork in tonight’s application to address…to confirm that you are correct. I’m not doubting that you’re telling the truth but I’d rather…
Mr. Rudgick: To answer your question, I wasn’t told that we had to provide that with me…I had a discussion with the City of Auburn’s Steve about that and based on that discussion I would assume that he vetted the process and looked at it and he told me that it was permissible. So I’m taking his word for this. I don’t know…I don’t know if the gentleman is here…

Ms. Calarco: I can’t tell you the legality part of it but I can you tell you *inaudible* you’re going to go down there, you’re going to see onstreet parking…and when it was a roadhouse, it was intense. 
Mr. Baroody: I’m not doubting the onstreet parking that has been but counsel brought up a question that he is *inaudible* in front of us very simpler without proof that is allowed by the City…I’d be hard pressed to vote in the affirmative. I would suggest that we table this and come with some proof or you can go forward, it’s your choice. I’m just saying my opinion without the proof that the City’s allowing onstreet parking…
Mr. Darrow: Keep one thing in mind if you should go forward and it should be denied, it is required that a significant change has occurred for the application to reapply to this Board.

Mr. Rudgick: I think my question is that is since I was told by the City, who said that it was permissible, I understand that you require some proof, I would have presumed that the City would provide that. Granted..

Mr. Darrow: It’s your case though so…

Mr. Rudgick: …if that’s going to make the approval dependent. You’re asking me to make a motion to make conditional approval based on evidence by the City because again, put me as the applicant...I mean I was told that it was permissible so if we can provide the Zoning Board evidence…

Mr. Darrow: We can make it contingent but that would be up to the other members and their vote if they would be satisfied with it being contingent upon proof.

Mr. Baroody: I have no problem with that if it’s okay with counsel…
Mr. Fusco: Yeah, I don’t have any *inaudible* on that. I haven’t had the joy of frequenting the roadhouse but I’m certain the cars parked in front of it back in the day. But I’m just thinking of practical observation, there were people who seemed to be familiar with the deed restrictions and what no in that neighborhood who spoke at that public hearing and seemed to believe that parking was not allowed there because it was a designated cul-de-sac or something to turnaround with. I remember something of that nature and they provided not proof as well. It was something that was raised. I happened to have been at the meeting where members of this Board weren’t so those people could very well have been wrong who say gee I didn’t think you could park in front of the roadhouse and I remember Officer Gilfuss was seated on that side of the room where Brian was and he was specifically asked that question and said gee I don’t know. So, the question from what I’ve heard and what I’ve looked at tonight and today preparing for tonight, has not yet been answered. I will say this, Mr. Selvek is aces, he’s usually 100% correct. So, I’m not doubting that you’re telling the truth or that he told you the truth. But, there is that issue that arose and I just thought whoever…it behooves you to have the issue raised tonight.
Mr. Rudgick: I understand and I’d like to talk a little bit about the parking issue but before *inaudible* for that property, the existing owner had planned to renovate that building and make it a pub or a bar again and I mean, it comes with a bar or pub would be even more increased traffic than what Housing Visions is currently proposing regardless. But I do understand your concerns, I mean, my preference would be is if the Board would approve a conditional motion or whatever *inaudible* then we can do that.
Mr. Darrow: That’s it. Right. Any other questions from the Board members? 
Thank you, you may be seated. Is there anybody present wishing to speak for or against this application for 92 Clark Street? Please come forward. If you could state your name and address for the record.

Ms. Ryan: Arlene Ryan, 36 Orchard Street. I have lived in the Orchard Street area since1995 and I fully *inaudible* company coming it to the neighborhood…
Mr. Baroody: Could you please speak up ma’am…I’m sorry…

Ms. Ryan: I said I’m Arlene Ryan, I’m a neighborhood resident and *inaudible* coming into our neighborhood to what they’re going to do improve conditions, etcetera and I’m sure that whatever you need to solve the parking part of it will be resolved and I hope you *inaudible*. The issue is such, you know, with not a lot of cars there or anything but we have to make sure that whatever you need will be resolved and we do approve changing this building from a former bar to a better…to a *inaudible*. We are all for this project because over the years things deteriorated in many neighborhoods, not just ours, I want to say very friendly and we knew everybody, you knew your neighborhood, your neighbor and your neighborhood, you’re involved but things changed over the years and the neighborhood was not the same. This company is coming in to build back up what was brought down and we are highly in favor of it. I’m sure that whatever you need resolved and it should be resolved legally and I think it will be. I think that we can move forward and we have a piece of property that I’m sure will become a part of the community property…
Mr. Darrow: Thank you very much for your input. Is there anybody else to for or against this application? Anybody else wishing to speak for or against this application? Hearing none, seeing none, I will close the public portion and discuss it amongst ourselves.

Mr. Tamburrino: Obviously it’s a good place to *inaudible*, I mean this is *inaudible*…I’m overjoyed to see this happen.

Ms. Martieny: This is one of the main thoroughfares of the community, this will look much, much better. I think the building itself is *inaudible* residential look about it and it’s going to be semi-business.

Ms. Calarco: I’d can honestly say I live down there so I can see this as a great improvement. I like this whole project and I’m very pleased with it. I guess I only have one minor exception, I would like to see more of the project being single-family homes instead of designated *inaudible* families but all in all, amazing. Let’s get it done.
Mr. Darrow: The Chair will entertain a motion and please remember the contingency.

Mr. Baroody: I’d like to make a motion that based on approval from the City that the on-street parking is allowed, that we allow Housing Visions Consultants, Inc. of Syracuse, New York three area variance for the construction of a new mixed-use construction as submitted on the drawings; an area variance of six of the required seven feet line setback on the west property line; an area variance of one foot, three and-a-half inches of the required ten feet line setback on the east property line and awaiting approval from the City, a variance for one and-a-half parking spaces of the required one and-a-half parking spaces.
Mr. Darrow: Thank you. We have a motion, do I have a second?

Ms. Calarco: Second.

VOTING IN FAVOR: Ms. Marteney, Mr. Baroody, Mr. Moskov, Ms. Calarco, Mr. Kilmer, Mr. Tamburrino and Mr. Darrow.

Mr. Darrow: Your motion has been approved. Thank you.

_______________________________________________________

102 N. Lewis Street
Mr. Darrow: Next on the agenda we have 102 North Lewis Street. Will you please come forward, state your name and your intentions into the microphone?

102:  Good evening, I’m Jocelyn Boss from Calamar Construction. With me this evening is Tom *inaudible* David Tehan and Ricardo Galbato. While Tom is setting up, if you would indulge him *inaudible*. A little bit of history before I get into this. We did have a neighborhood meeting on the 8th of March at the Holiday Inn. I won’t get into the various different recommendations we had and how to modify the plan to meet those recommendations. We also had our first formal Planning Board meeting on the 3rd of April where Planning took Lead Agency in the SEQR process. We also met on the 18th with the Sewer and Water Department and Planning again to work on, hopefully, being able to exit out of Standart vs. N. Lewis as one of the neighborhood’s recommendations. This is designed for individuals aged 55 years and older, moderate income for paying rents that fall between the *inaudible* that are out that they don’t quite make little enough to be eligible for and they don’t make enough money for the higher end products that’s like $2,500 a month. 
One and two-bedroom rents range from $815 to $1,050. Included in that is water, sewer, cable, heat and washers and dryers in each unit…individual unit. The apartments range in square footage from the ones that are 625 square feet up to 1,017 square feet and our largest is *inaudible*. Each unit has its own patio. The entire first floor is wheelchair accessible. We will be putting in four wheelchair accessible units, the rest are all adaptable and the complex is up to New York State Code. That’s over 75 units *inaudible*. 
This is independent living…independent living, no nurses on staff. We will have a site manager and a maintenance person. During the construction and *inaudible* will be soliciting through *inaudible* from local contractors for each of the various disciplines. 
A typical tenant is…we *inaudible* have three existing complexes in Western New York, two in Wheatfield, one in Orchard and one that will be starting to be occupied by October 1st in Irwin. We also have two others in Omaha, Nebraska and one that will be under construction in *inaudible*. 
Our typical tenant is a 72 year old with an average income of approximately $30,000 to $33,000. The female to male percentage is 60% female to 40% male. Ninety percent of the individuals that will be residing there are retired while the other ten percent works either part-time or volunteers an average of 16 hours a week. The average unit *inaudible* of the transportation study. *Inaudible* 
In this proposal we also will be answering two to three of the specific goals of the Comprehensive Plan. I know that’s in the application so I’m not going to go into reading it. 
Ready? While he’s setting up here…there are specifically four items that were raised…five items that were raised by the neighborhood meeting. One is Caitlin Ave *inaudible*. The setback originally was 30 feet off… their property line was the back of our garages. We’re now 100 feet off the back of our garages and leaving a *inaudible* of natural trees there beside significant landscaping that we’ll be doing. 

Standart Avenue…the neighbors mentioned that there was a significant amount of problems with their existing water line coming off of their site…with no receptacle to catch it. Our intent besides capturing *inaudible* the *inaudible* is to *inaudible* the existing run off for the Standart Avenue neighbors by at least ten percent. 
Originally we had a drive coming off here to North Lewis. The neighbors along the property line asked us to specifically to try to pursue a different avenue. Hence, we have proposed going to Standart Avenue and at the meeting of the Sewer and Water Department and we have initiated a second traffic study as to Standart Avenue as well.

*Inaudible* and attached to the fact sheets. Attached to the fact sheets is a *inaudible* we’re also taking *inaudible* as the existing usage and land which is evident by the *inaudible* photographs. Motorcycles or four-wheelers tracks and people have been dumping and what have you on the site itself. 
We can answer any questions or do you want me wait until the…

Mr. Darrow: We’ll take the presentation first.

N. Lewis: Okay.

Mr. Darrow: Sir, if you could give your name and your involvement for the record.

N. Lewis: *Inaudible* engineer representing Calamar *inaudible* and I have a couple of supplemental materials. 
First, I want to give you an updated concept sketch. The one that’s in your variance application submitted prior to the Planning Board meeting showed the North Lewis connection. At that meeting we decided to pursue primarily the Standart Avenue connection. Both are viable options. At this point we’d like to do the Standart so we want to make sure that you have that available and the plan shown here. There’s also a letter from one of the property owners regarding the zoned property and then also some additional photographs. The fact sheet information was provided earlier at the *inaudible*.
Primarily I want to address a couple items. First is to describe the nature of our variances that we’re requesting. The second is to discuss the impact that those potential variances…those variances would potentially have, how we’re indicating them and the third is to discuss the financial facts of the property and why the variances are not self-created and why there’s no hardship with the property.

So *inaudible* mentioned, we’re planning to develop a 110 senior housing apartment complex within an R1 Zone. This would be classified as an elevator-type apartment building. Our variance application would be specifically for the type of use variances we are looking for is for a 110 senior apartment elevator-style *inaudible*. So *inaudible* any type of elevator-style apartment complex for 110-unit senior apartment complex and that senior development is pretty important because of the type of tenants you’re going to have. The facility bears the weight of the impact, or lack thereof, on the *inaudible*. 
In order to…although it’s hard *inaudible* the kind of development, we’re providing the required parking, landscaping, utilities, other items that the Planning Board *inaudible* as part of their requirements within the site. With a use variance in this area, within an R1 Zone, one aspect that we’re looking at in this application is on the adjacent zoning area, so we’re looking at the uses surrounding property itself. To the east you have Grant Avenue, which is primarily a highway commercial zone. We’ve provided a zoning map and a use map within the application. We have a highly commercial zone on Grant Avenue and then on the west of that is mostly single-family housing and this…but if you look to the north, you would have another multi-family in an R4. If you look on the other side of Grant Avenue, on the other side of this is a highway commercial zone, you’ll see that there’s a lot more institutional uses and open spaces. Generally with a highway commercial zone, you want to foster that type of zone from a low-density single-family development. 
That’s one of the difficulties in actually developing a single-family development is the potential for the neighbors to now have any significant type of highway commercial property that would be developed next to it. A Wal-mart superstore, anything could be developed in a highway commercial zone, that’s the intent of the highway commercial zone. It’s to promote large-scale commercial development. 

So, this type of development would help provide the residential transition to that commercial development…going from low-density residential to higher-density residential then to highway commercial. In comparison, other developments over the last number of years, two in particular that have been proposed have been commercial developments proposed as well. There was a lot of concern in that direction about the impact of commercial property adjacent to a single-family home area. Now *inaudible* the same difficulties used to develop commercial property *inaudible*.
In addition, this development also serves a need within the community in the Comprehensive Plan, it specifically discusses the need for more senior housing options within a community apart from a low-income housing and there are facilities that *inaudible* with health needs that are in the middle of *inaudible* so people don’t have to leave the community to find this type of housing to suit their needs. When they’re looking to downsize from a single-family home, they don’t want as many maintenance requirement. What they’re looking for is a kind of community. 
The style in itself is the type of facility that’s placed here…the community center is designed to allow for the maximum amount of trees *inaudible*. Other parts of developments like Standart Woods across the street with *inaudible* buildings scattered across the site don’t have the same type of community involvement that *inaudible* community living. It all helps to condense the development. You can see on the concept plan we have…there are some significant areas that will remain of woods area. We’re going to be minimizing our footprint to the greatest extend possible which is why we’re asking for an area variance for height to allow for a building height that’s 2.28 feet greater than *inaudible*.
In the use variance application, there are there are *inaudible* prints on the use variance and there’s the area variance. From a hardship standpoint, the property has been tentatively developed for many years.  The current property owners have tried to sell this for development *inaudible* for even up to 1994 with development proposal on this property. It’s been on the open market continuously for ten years with *inaudible* and looking at the prices that we have, it’s not been requested for *inaudible* $1 million, $2 million, $3 million dollars from marketed as commercial property. *inaudible* the market levels for the size of the property *inaudible*. The current property owners…the majority of the property, apart from a few small houses being purchased for emergency access, has been all the current owners who are *inaudible* who are not actual…We weren’t able to *inaudible* the data for how much the property was purchased at the time *inaudible*. 
One thing I’m looking to hardship for to develop the conforming sub-division plan is if we were to develop this under conforming zone, what would the potential economic benefit be and also impact to the community, the output from the economic benefit and the impact to *inaudible*. So we developed a 35 lot sub-division plan on the same parcel. This is a conforming sub-division plan conforming to the specific block requirements, lot sizes, dimensions. These are approximately *inaudible* acre lots *inaudible*. You can see from the layout of the site there are 35 lots, we preserved the greatest *inaudible* management and then also created *inaudible*. We did a construction take-off and a cost estimate. Based on the infrastructure alone, that would be the pavement, the grading, there would be certain items that would need to be provided with this site development just to get the lots prepared, the site development cost would be over $2.5 million. If you include the site work in the cost of the land divided among 35 houses, the cost of the housing price would have to be above $85,000 each lot, just to cover those lots improvements. The average home price in Auburn over the last five years is approximately $85,000. So if you have on top of that cost just to construct the house, the minimum housing value to even break even on this would have to be about $250,000. In order to realize a fifteen to twenty percent profit, we may have to go as high as $300,000 in order to realize a profit or reasonable rate of return on the project. 
So, from a hardship standpoint, the current property owners had intended to sell the property to commercial developers *inaudible*. Obviously *inaudible* residential subdivision is not an economically feasible situation. They have owned the property for a number of years and they tried to sell it as open vacant land and so in our belief, this is a use variance that is the most approximate use that would realize an economic rate of return to the current *inaudible* for residential single-family *inaudible*.

All our economic data provided in the application, we *inaudible*. From an impact to the community, we’ve provided a little summary table with all these *inaudible* that compare the impact of the proposed application with the impact of developing a 35 house subdivision and you can see it from the data the amount of certain acreage to do this 35 *inaudible* would be greater. We would save almost no existing trees. We’d have to furnish*inaudible* grade up for all the houses, their back yards, the roads. We’d have to disturb at least ninety-five percent or more of the property. It would be adding more *inaudible* area than we would based on our current calculations. We’d be looking at a higher amount of flow water runoff. We’re proposing approximately at least a ten percent decrease in flow water…rate of flow water runoff on the site *inaudible*. We’ve been running the calculations this week, we submitted a report to the Planning Board and then realized up to thirty-six percent decrease in the flow water runoff on the site. And so, really no one can get a much higher reduction of flow water runoff would be possible by a program of this size. Here what is happening, because of the size of the *inaudible* be available, we had to keep those as small as possible in order to maximize more of the current maximizing on the property. 
The number of residents, we would be looking at probably about 140 residents compared what we anticipate as 150. So a small decrease but the type of resident, we’re assuming this is going to be more of a family given that the location and the size of the houses will likely be smaller, younger families, starter homes an opportunity *inaudible* obviously but the development itself. So, we’re likely going to have kids who are going have an impact to the school district, an impact to the City budget, all this, roads, lighting, sewer and water, all this would have to be dedicated *inaudible* and would then become a burden on the City. And also *inaudible* area resident’s standpoint, if you have *inaudible* neighbors, you have 35 neighbors on the move instead of *inaudible*. The impact would be much more at this end of the development than the development *inaudible* monitor the facility. We have gathered data providing the Planning Board about the number of calls that are *inaudible*. We’ve had no police calls in six months. 
Also, we’re looking at the sewer and utilities usage. The proposed development would use more sewer than this development, 28,000 gallons per day compared to *inaudible* about 21,000 gallons a day. But *inaudible* the water and sewer departments *inaudible* are acceptable and the type of impact that this would have in a large development is similar to the same *inaudible*.
From a traffic standpoint, Jocelyn alluded to the seniors that we’re looking at typically do not have nine-to-five-type jobs, ninety-percent are retired so most people are going to try not to travel when there is the highest traffic times. They’ll be going to the grocery store at 10:00 o’clock or 11:00, not at 7:30. So generally when we look at trip generation or traffic generation from a senior housing complex, it’s much lower than it will be from *inaudible*. So here we may have, still assuming two adults per family per household *inaudible* adults, so we’re looking at traffic at almost twice that from what would be anticipated from the senior housing. 

The type of neighbor as well, the typical resident at one of the Calamar’s complexes is dedicated, they’re a clean neighbor, *inaudible*, they’ve been in the community, they’re most likely the people that are even neighbors in this community *inaudible* Auburn community in general. They’ve been in the community for 50 years and so they’ve been dedicated neighbor and they’re going to remain that and they remain part of the community. So they have *inaudible*, they’re involved in the political process, they’re contributing back to the community. 
So as far as the impact, it’s our contention that a thirty-five lot housing subdivision would have a much greater impact on the community than would the proposed senior housing complex. In dealing with the commercial areas, highway commercial on Grant Avenue, there are four multi-family apartment complexes to the north and the type of community *inaudible*. We’ve have taken a lot of steps in order to address the concerns of the neighbors. We’ve moved the development further from the residents on Caitlin Street substantially, providing 100 feet between the nearest garage so we’re looking more than 150 feet to the main building itself. We’ve looked at pursuing an access off of Standart Avenue *inaudible* access to require the *inaudible* of an easement from all the property owners, providing access *inaudible*. We’re looking at, we’re mitigating many of our sewer impacts, working with the Sewer Department to help investigate and alleviate problems potentially on Standart Avenue. We’re going to offset whatever the sewer impact is *inaudible* and we’re going to significantly reduce the flow water management *inaudible* to the site. A lot of the sewer problems that we had is with inflow filtration. Inflow being service water that’s getting into the *inaudible* and infiltration is water that’s getting the sewer from underground. By reducing the draw from the site during storm events and putting that into the City sewage, we would be also impacting in a positive way the inflow infiltration from the facility. If you were looking at, when I say 28,000 gallons per day, it sounds like a very large number but in sewers 28,000 gallons per day is a number they can deal with. In a storm sewer, 28,000 gallons per day is almost nothing. We’re looking at probably about 30 CFF that’s discharging from half of the site, 30,000 gallons per is .03 CFFs. So, like a thousand times difference. We’re going to be reducing the storm water runoff, based on my current calculations, by thirty percent. Even if the smallest portion of what we’re reducing now did not get into the sewers, sanitary sewer in any storm event, we’re offsetting our sanitary *inaudible*. So we see this overall benefit to the community far less impact than the conforming subdivision and a definite hardship to the property owners. 
I’d also like to address the area variance. We are requesting an area variance to permit a building height of 2.2 feet of what is permitted. Primarily this allows us to construct a three-story building rather than a two-story building. A two story building would have a fifty percent increase in our footprint, *inaudible* which would have to be distributed which would increasing not only the site disturbance but all the construction costs. In looking at the additional buffering that we’re providing, in addition to the set back, when you’re looking at the shadow analysis primarily starting with the neighbors to the north of you, would *inaudible* primarily gave them the south. Obviously we’re much further from any of the neighbors that we would have an impact on but if you look at the height of our buildings, they’re the height of the buildings on Caitlin Street. Our elevation is the same, the rooflines will be the same as Caitlin Street because it’s so much lower.  Generally the site drops off, *inaudible* cut across the site so our third storey is the same as their second storey. We’re not removing more *inaudible*. We’ve provided fairly detailed three-dimensional analysis in a program called “Sketchup” in order to show what the development looks like. All the pictures *inaudible* kind of unique. 
The *inaudible* on the initial proposal to have a connection on North Lewis Street, the building’s in the same location, it’s located underneath the *inaudible* together with…the view from the building will be the same on this compared to the Standart Avenue access. The *inaudible* for the most of the view that we chose, the people are provided to give you a human scale on this, this is two-scale model that’s built using actual height sizes and everything to give a realistic picture of what it would look like. You can see from many of the properties you can’t even see the building. I know from Caitlin the housing development itself is below the trees *inaudible*. The building itself is a residential-style building. It’s got lots of siding, the color they chose to blend in, not to stand out. It’s gabled-style roof so it blends with the neighborhood itself. There’s a lot attempts to try and be a good neighbor here because Calamar doesn’t just develop and walk away, they don’t flip the site…they’re here to stay. They develop the site, they maintain the site, they try and attract people to live here. They’re neighbors are current resident neighbors of Auburn. They’re looking to provide a property where people can continue to interact positively with the neighborhood and to do that they need to be a good neighbor themselves. They need to keep the landscaping up, they need to keep their roads and utilities maintained, the parking lots maintained and if they don’t they have 110 senior who are more than willing to remind them. And that’s what translates into continually maintain the property so to keep their tenants. Calamar needs to fill with over ninety percent…ninety-two percent of the units before they start making a profit. So this isn’t about trying to make a large profit and turning something over and getting out, Calamar is here to stay and they want to create a positive impact.
Mr. Darrow: Is there any other points to the presentation?

N. Lewis St.: No.

Mr. Darrow: Your presentation is complete then?

N. Lewis St.: Yes.

Mr. Darrow: Are there any questions from the Board members at this time to the presenters? Okay, you may be seated.

Is there anybody here wishing to speak for or against this application? Could you please come forward, give your name…your name and address, please speak into the microphone.

Ms. Vandyke: Good evening Board members. My name is Debbie Vandyke. I live at 3 Caitlin Street. I’m here tonight not only for myself but also the neighborhood surrounding this proposed senior complex. I respectfully ask each of you to listen to our concerns against this project. One, there is no need for anymore housing complexes, senior or otherwise. We already have sixteen within a one mile radius from us. I go down the list. How many more calls can our Fire Department take? In 2011, just for one, there was over 300 emergency calls to Northbrook alone. It is not more housing we need, it is to obtain jobs. According the 2010 Unite States Census, Auburn’s population is down 3.1 %. Eighteen percent of Auburn is below poverty levels. The average median income is $37,487. In the past year West Middle School has shut down. How is this proposed senior complex even be affordable at rents between $800 and $1,100 or will it just become another Section 8 for low income in two years? Calamar has built compexes from Omaha, Nebraska to Orchard Park near Buffalo. They’ve been built in rural areas minutes from any cities. This complex does not fit in with our residential area. It will change dramatically the character of our neighborhood. The nuisance this will create while being build, the noise and traffic will affect the quality of our lives. The impact on the traffic will be a major problem. I live up from Kostas where there are daily deliveries, Happy Hour, party on the patio every Thursday and sporting events. This has already turned Caitlin and Lewis into a race track filled with hundreds of motorcycles and cars and they do park on both sides of the street. We don’t need anymore cars. A firetruck at times cannot get up that narrow street. Our safety is at risk. There is a need to do an onstreet traffic study on all surrounding streets. The traffic on Standart and the area between Standart and Caitlin is already horrible and already very dangerous. We do ask for a complete environmental study to be done. The wildlife out there consists of bats, deer, wild turkey, owls, rabbits, woodpeckers, woodchucks, opossum and many birds. We have even see blue heron out there. They do need to be protected. We also have concerns about the dump that was back there more than 50 years ago. There was underground springs out there. *Inaudible* and the surrounding land where chemicals, oil and solvents have been dumped. We also have concerns about retention pond they want to build. It is a prime habitat for disease-causing bacteria and elevated bacteria can *inaudible*. We also have fears about mosquitoes carrying the triple e virus. We need the DEC to be fully involved with all studies and permits. I thank you for listening to me. Please consider all concerns and deny any and all requests.
Mr. Darrow: Thank you. Is there anybody else who would like to speak? Please come forward. Could you give your name and address for the record.

Ms. Brown: Hello, my name is Helen Brown. I live at 116 N. Lewis Street. I’ve been a member of this community for 50 years in that house and I just have some concerns about a project of this magnitude. It definitely will change the character of our single home residential area. A development housing 110 units and 70 garages is certainly not compatible to one house with one garage or two apartments and two garages. It’s just not. We have come to the Zoning Board and the Planning Board on two other occasions for commercial zoning which we felt was also detrimental to our neighborhood. I don’t recall them ever trying to develop it into single-family homes, not that that would be an answer to their problems and I know that they have tried very hard to get rid of this property. I think at this point that maybe some of the neighbors would even be willing to buy parts of it or all of it and divide it up among themselves just so they wouldn’t have to see this being developed. Well, I’m also a senior citizen and when he talked about traffic, I’m in and out about 25 times a day. I have things to do. I have grandchildren, I have kids to pick and I don’t think these people are going to be sitting there all day long, maybe three or four times a day go out, if that. I mean I don’t know what they’re going to do but if they’re like me, they’re going to be awfully busy. I think they’re talking an age between 55 and 75 well, I’m 70 and I’m still going and I ain’t going to stop. Okay. I can’t understand why they would want to build a senior housing project in the middle of this area because first off, Grant Avenue is one of the busiest corridors that we have in the City. The noise travels there to my house which is probably four or five *inaudible* away and I hear sirens and trucks and dumptrucks emptying garbage containers all over Grant Avenue. At Kostas you can hear the music, you can hear the dancing, you can the *inaudible* the fighting going on in the street when they had too much to drink. I just don’t understand the reasoning for a senior citizens project. The other thing is it’s three stories high. That’s like putting an elephant in a cage, I mean it’s really very large. I don’t know, if you’re building this housing for seniors and they’re running it as a business for profit, then why would it be considered a commercial enterprise which would require a zone change? Environmental issues are a big concern. Debbie mentioned the water retention basin. The last figure I had was 2.7 acres which mean 106,680 feet of water sitting out there five foot deep. 
Mr. Darrow: Ma’am, could you start summarizing, your time’s up.

Ms. Brown: My time’s up?

Mr. Darrow: Well, just summarize.

Ms. Brown: I didn’t know, okay. We’re already no doubt they’ll have a beautiful landscaped development. I think what I want to ask you is that do not consider approving them because pay attention to rest of us who pay our taxes in this community for many years and remember that generations have come back to our neighborhood because of the quality of life and friendships we’ve formed and we really don’t want it. Thank you and I’m sorry I took up more time.

Mr. Darrow: Thank you. Is there anyone else wishing to speak? Please come forward, give your name and address for the record.

Mr. Gabak: Hi, I’m Tom Gabak, 106 North Lewis Street. Thank you very much for having *inaudible*. I have a couple of concerns for the community in opposition of this senior village. Firstly they impact our infrastructure. First the sewer and water retention pond, the storm sewer that they want dumping into cannot physically hold the water that they’re planning on dumping at the storm water retention pond. Yes, they’re looking to upgrade on their dime to fix the proper pipes but, you know, that hasn’t happened yet. *Inaudible*. As far as sanitary sewers, you get a day like today and a day like tomorrow when we get an inch of rain, I can take anybody out there to an interceptor and if you pop the top of the manhole, there’s going to be water right there staring at you in the face. The addition of 30,000 gallons a day of sanitary water through that system is going to cause a burden on the impact to the north of Standart Avenue from there water. The second impact on the community is obviously on the wildlife. Every day I enjoy the 6 deer in my back yard, my kids, I have a 4-year old and a 2-year old, and they love seeing them everyday and occasionally turkeys and fox through there. It’s just really, like I said before to the Planning Board, it’s a nice habitat to have and cherish in our backyards. It’s kind of like having a little Central Park in Auburn. One of the other things we talked about, they’re talking about hardships well, I think the infrastructure to the community are impact the wildlife in the area and in our *inaudible*. I bought that house three years ago. My house is right here…for three years now. My neighbor’s house is going to be directly next to the original proposed driveway. Like I said before, when I moved in 3 years ago, it’s a quiet neighborhood, everybody’s friendly, everybody gets along. I knew in the past they were fighting this challenge for a commercial property, now we have a new residential development going that is going to be three stories tall and it will be impacting the City. The current *inaudible* that they want to have is direct with my back yard. So the impact is a way of life that we’ve become accustomed to and it’s going to put a hardship on us as well. They’re talking about purchasing the land. Two years ago I did try to offer the *inaudible* to sell me some of the land that bordered my property. She told me at the time she had some sort of agreement with one of the gentlemen that he had *inaudible* so it becomes one of those matches of who’s got more money and obviously I’m *inaudible*. The other thing that they alluded to that if it does fall through, hopefully we can work out some kind of arrangement if the community as a group, we could buy and use if forever green and it will always be that way. And finally impacting our community, I talked to a couple of surrounding complexes that we have, Northbrook Heights, there are many openings there, I’m not sure the one behind Murray Street there’s a couple as well. I did talk to the gentleman that owns Standart Woods apartments today and he said he does have two openings but this complex if allowed will directly target his business and people will jump ship and will go basically across the street leaving him high and dry. So there’s a *inaudible* impact to the community that we have to look down the road for and if this beautiful building is built, what’s it going to leave Standart Woods at. It’s obviously an older builder, there must be some improvements, where’s that going to leave him, what is he going to have there? So there’s a lot of things for you to take into consideration tonight. Thank you.
Mr. Darrow: Thank you for your input. Is there anybody else wishing to speak for or against this applicant? Anybody else wishing to speak for or against this applicant? Seeing none, hearing none, I shall close the public portion so we can discuss it amongst ourselves. 
Okay members.

Mr. Baroody: We’ve seen a couple of other developments like this and much as we can sympathize, myself included, and while everyone has a “not in my backyard” mentality for some of the things again. Every city in the nation, the infrastructure is crumbling. We have a sewage treatment plant that can handle a lot more product and the infrastructure and the leakage…the seeping of the existing pipes is straining that. As far as the deer and the wildlife, please understand, let the public understand that has nothing to do with what we can do. We can look at a very narrow legislative issue that’s put before us. If it was forever green we wouldn’t be having this conversation now but we appreciate all your comments. 
Mr. Tamburrino: This just reminds me of another case we had, I think it’s Miller Street…off of Clark Street, it was developed there. It’s the same situation…

Mr. Darrow: Between Belmont and Mullen on Clark.

Mr. Taburrino: Right. The view was that the people were talking about buying the land and…
Mr. Baroody: Same issue…

Mr. Tamburrino: Same issue a while ago. The residents didn’t buy the land and somebody else came and they had the right to sell it and develop it. It looks like the same thing…

Mr. Baroody: We have to assume at this point is the detention or retention ponds…I’m assuming the ponds are *inaudible* with the Planning Board and the proper, everything will be in place for that. That’s not for us to consider. We’re to consider what was put before us. 
Mr. Tamburrino: That’s the test. Will it change in character of the neighborhood? It’s a big test. 
Mr. Darrow: I believe that the testimony truly pointed out that to use it as its designated use with single family is cost prohibitive. As far as the area variance, I think the 2D pictures show that it’s not a major concern, we’re talking 2 ¼ feet higher than allowed.

Mr. Tamburrino: The actual site is lower. I read the report and so I shouldn’t have any..

Mr. Darrow: Right, it’s not like they’re seeking a 15 foot variance for the area. Well, we are dealing with a use variance. Again, I do remind the Board that we voted to make Planning Lead Agency for SEQR Review so that is being taken care of by them. One presenter did mention that an environmental impact study be done. So that is in Planning’s hands.  The use variance itself, I believe it falls to us because it’s going to be 110-unit elevator complex. Now…
Mr. Fusco: It falls to you because it’s a multiple dwelling as opposed to a single-family residence. 
Mr. Tamburrino: It changes it, it’s now a neighborhood.

Mr. Darrow:  So, is it going to change the character of the neighborhood?

Mr. Baroody: That’s the question.

Mr. Tamburrino: It’s interesting that the…one of the, I can’t remember the…

Mr. Baroody: Rick, I’m sorry, I can’t hear you…

Mr. Tamburrino: One of the ladies that…she had some testimony tonight, she talked about the senior citizens and how much…how active they really are. It made you think a little bit. Also all of the complexes that already exist in that part of town. Just something to think about. 

Mr. Baroody: That I can understand and I’m sure he’s into it. I don’t have a huge house. My house is 2,500 square feet. I can touch the wall of retirement but I’m not ready yet and I don’t think $800 to $1,100 bucks is an unreasonable amount of money to pay for a decent unit. On the other hand, do I want to live in a three-story building or would I prefer a patio home, that kind of thing. So that’s…

Mr. Darrow: I look at one argument made by a presenter that there’s the competition Standart Woods across the street. Are people going to jump ship there? Do we really need it? But the one thing I look at now, I believe every month we have more and more baby boomers coming into the retirement part of their life and is there housing to support them for what they want? There’s the other side of the argument on that. 
Ms. Calarco: I agree. I look at this and I see this personally. I could see me doing this. I could see that my children are going to take over my home, that we are going to be retiring, if we are going to modification…so do I see other people that are looking at the same type of thing or they’re going to sell their big home and they want to stay in the community because they love the community, this gives them the ability to do so. And, I guess the thing is well we didn’t need Logan Street apartments either. We didn’t what Bartolottas did on Logan, nobody will pay that kind of money. They’re full.
Mr. Darrow: Yes.

Ms. Calarco: And they have a waiting list.

Ms. Marteney: And the new complex up on North Street is…I can’t think of the Mill…Brooster Mills is soon to open and that’s a younger population…

Mr. Darrow: Loft style….

Ms. Marteney: …and they’re anticipating on those loft styles. I think what I have seen is that these developers are attempting to work with the community. They are trying to keep more land around it that is staying in the natural state and I appreciate that. They have looked to take that drive off and put it over onto Standart. Yes it’s Standart Ave, miserable to drive on at times, no question. Do I think that this is going to change it? *Inaudible*. I don’t really think so. At this point *inaudible*.

Mr. Darrow: I truly understand their concerns about the wildlife and the area behind them and they got used to it…they’ve become accustomed to it, they like that but also there’s the fold of we can see how it’s being used for refuse and also the property owners do have the right to develop their property and sell the property and I know personally from all the years on this Board that that property has been up for at least three or four different possibilities. There has been due diligence and they are right, it’s not like they’ve been asking a ridiculous amount of money for the property, it’s finding something that ‘s going to fit the property.

Ms. Calarco: In light of that and the community knowing that this has been attempted time and time again, if they truly wanted to buy it in the whole and keep it wildlife, why has it not been bought? Why is it now that we’re looking at another project that again well let’s get together and we’ll try to buy it again. I appreciate that and I respect that part of it but how long do we keep saying let’s wait for the next time to try to get everybody to buy it and then make into a *inaudible*. When do you give up on that aspect? 
Mr. Tamburrino: I think of this when I looked at this thing I noticed the property has been up for sale and I’ve heard of things…I looked at this *inaudible* and say gee this is a lot better than some big box retailer, some ugly building there and this is nice and the way they go three stories rather than two so they have a vertical rather than spreading out area wise, that makes a lot of sense. Plus they’ve saved a lot of green space around it. So those things are all very positive in my mind. The big huge drainage swale there, that came to my mind, what about the *inaudible* like this but I’m sure that’s the engineers that will take care of that.
Mr. Darrow: Several years ago, I’m not sure if any of you members were on the Board, then there was actually a grocery store talked about for that and you compare this to a grocery store…I’d put this in my backyard any day.

Excuse me, the public portion is closed.

Mr. Baroody: In addition, we’re quick to criticize, we should be as quick to compliment. Win, lose or draw, it’s a great package that’s put together and presented to the Board.

Mr. Tamburrino: Absolutely. Very impressed. One interesting comment that one of the women made here tonight was the number of emergency calls to senior citizens. Everybody knows they have more health problems so there would be more ambulances and firetrucks down there because of that. It’s something I didn’t think about. 
Mr. Baroody: I take Lipitor…
Mr. Tamburrino: You’re next huh?

Mr. Darrow: Is there anymore discussion?

Ms. Calarco: I guess I just, yes, everybody would love to just have this beautiful wildlife nature center in their backyard. I probably would be the first one to say I want it but I do agree, there is a certain element where we have to allow the people who own the property the chance to develop it. It’s their property, not ours.

Mr. Darrow: And this is a point of somebody who was affected. As you all know I live down by the other property that went in between Mullen Drive and Belmont. And I’ll be quite honest, with that property I haven’t seen any increase in traffic…there’s been no anymore mischief, if you would, around. I wouldn’t even know it’s there and I was one of the first ones to complain about it and not want it.

Ms. Marteney: I’m pleased to see the change of design that you’ve taken the neighborhood concerns about the exit onto North Lewis Street and now the long driveway coming up is I think a good solution the way that it intersects with Standart Ave or Standart apartments. I would anticipate that there might be, and again it’s none of our business, some kind of a light there that would allow people to come and go there so that in terms of traffic, there won’t be congestion and perhaps more accidents happening there. But the new design certainly makes it part of the neighborhood but also keeps it as a private enclave at the same time so that it’s not making noise and the fact that the garages are on the…I don’t know which direction that is, towards North Lewis Street would also stop any of the noise that would be there. Also all the trees there would integrate the backside of the property into the forest…what appears to be kind of forested areas of that long end of people’s yards there.
Mr. Darrow:  Is there anymore discussion?

Mr. Kilmer: I have a question for Counsel. Because this is designated for senior citizen’s housing, basically 55 and over in this use variance…part of its use variance, is there any chance that this could at some point turn into lower income housing?

Mr. Fusco: There’s an exact possibility or take kids. Or they could take families.

Mr. Kilmer: The fact that that it’s a use variance…

Mr. Fusco: What they’re seeking is a multiple dwelling, not necessarily with regard to those people dwelling there being adults. Were we to grant the variance, it runs with the land not with the type of inhabitants that they plan on marketing to in the early years. Things change.

Mr. Darrow: Any other questions?

Ms. Calarco: Is it possible to put this…

Mr. Baroody: Sorry Debbie, I could not hear you…

Ms. Calarco: Is it possible to put an agreement to 

Mr. Fusco: Only old people can live there? 
Mr. Darrow: Of a certain age?

Ms. Calarco: And use it just the same way that they are proposing it.

Mr. Baroody: Six hundred square foot…the apartments are very small. Six hundred to a thousand, the thousand square feet for a two bedroom. Debbie your dining room is two thousand square feet.

Ms. Calarco: No, it ‘s not…

Mr. Barood: If they’re geared toward…and again we have to look at it with submitted as geared toward that demographic. That’s what we look at.

Mr. Tamburrino: But beyond that is it going to change? If they sell it tomorrow???

Mr. Baroody: They could have 21 and under.

Mr. Tamburrino: So the answer to that is we could actually have within 5 years…that could be just anybody up there.

Mr. Darrow: In ten years the same thing could happen Logan Street aparments.

Mr. Baroody: That’s right…same thing on Clark Street.

Mr. Darrow: I guess some of it is you have to put the trust in the company you’re dealing with.

Mr. Fusco: Well I think they are going to market towards senior citizens who fall between those two parameters that they discussed in their presentation because that’s the most saleable market according to their studies. That’s their business. But, let’s say that some big employer came here to town that employed people who are between 30 and 40 years old and there was a need for housing for those young up and comers. They can pay the money. They’re allowed to live there.

Mr. Darrow: Any other discussion? The Chair will entertain a motion. We should do them one at a time.

Ms. Jensen: Excuse me, I have a question for Counsel. Does this motion or both motions need to be contingent on the SEQR Review?

Mr. Fusco: I think to be safe that would not be a bad idea and we’re going to be…what we’ve done along those lines, we have deferred Lead Agency status to a different agency. So SEQR is going to be conducted, however it turns out it turns out. We’re looking more is not to the procedural aspects of SEQR and as to what type of environmental concerns need to be addressed. Specifically, Ms. Vandyke and Mr. Gabak spoke at length about that. So SEQR’s going to be done so it’s…I would never want this Board to get into a situation that we’re going approve this use or going to approve this extra-dimentional variance if only a negative declaration is ultimately issued or a positive declaration is issued and whatever concerns are adduced are mitigated by an environmental impact statement. So the…we could certainly have…is it contingent on SEQR being done, I guarantee a SEQR will be done. Now how it will turn out, I don’t know. None of us know. But I would not want to get into the position of conditioning your decision on the merits as to whether the environmental outcome is going to be a, b or c. I realize that’s a long answer towards a very simply question. I hope I was able to answer it though.

Mr. Darrow: So therefore the motion does not have to be contingent upon SEQR Review? 
Mr. Baroody: I’d like to make a motion that we grant Jocelyn Bros, Calamar Construction of Wheatfield, New York an area variance of two-and-a-half feet in the height of the allowed 35 maximum height structure.

Mr. Darrow: I have a motion. Do I have a second for the area variance? Do we have a second? Ms. Calarco? Roll call.

VOTING IN FAVOR: Ms. Marteney, Mr. Baroody, Mr. Moskov, Ms. Calarco, Mr. Kilmer, Mr. Tamburrino and Mr. Darrow.

The Chair will now entertain a motion for the use variance. 
Mr. Tamburrino: I’d like to make a motion that we grant Calamar Construction of Wheatfield, New York a use variance to construct a 110 unit elevator apartment building in the R1 use district.

Mr. Baroody: Second.

Mr. Darrow: We have a motion and a second. Roll call please.

VOTING IN FAVOR: Ms. Marteney, Mr. Baroody, Mr. Moskov, Ms. Calarco, Mr. Kilmer, Mr. Tamburrino and Mr. Darrow.

Mr. Darrow: Your variances have been approved. Thank you.

After the room clears we’ll address a couple of housekeeping issues. I can ask if you could please file out quietly, we still have business to conduct. 
Ma’am, would you like to address the Board? Okay. No, I just wanted to see if you wished to speak.

Mr. Fusco: Before you get to housekeeping, I didn’t understand Renee’s question before. Now I understand what she was asking. We have been noticed by the Planning Board of their intent to be Lead Agency for the purpose of the SEQR Review. We have not yet deferred to the Planning Board…

Mr. Darrow: We voted on it last meeting, end of March. Then we need to make a motion…

Mr. Fusco: No, you can do nothing..

Mr. Darrow: To make them Lead Agency?

Mr. Fusco: Yes, all you have to do is nothing and within 30 days they automatically have the right. So you can do nothing. 
Mr. Darrow: But if we deported them evening, therefore it hasn’t got to wait the 30 days and the SEQR Review can go forward. I’m sure it’s going to be a long form considering.

Mr. Baroody: What do you suggest Council?

Mr. Fusco: I don’t know. I don’t know what I’d suggest, because I too had forgotten that we had not deferred.

Mr. Darrow: See I thought that was one we did late month. 
Mr. Darrow: If it’s easy we’ll make a motion to deferment and get it done.

Mr. Fusco: Go ahead. Yeah.

Mr. Baroody: I’d like to make a motion that we make the Planning Board the Lead Agency for the development. Mr. Tamburrino seconded.
Mr. Fusco:  We have no objection to the Planning Board.

Mr. Darrow: We have a motion and a second. All those in favor, aye. Opposed, none. Planning Board is Lead Agency.

Under housekeeping, the packets. I got mine on Friday. Did everybody’s come early or was it on Friday as well. Great, I’ll blame the Post Office.

Mr. Tamburrino: You sent me an e-mail to me and I got it.

Mr. Darrow: One other thought that Rich came up with and I’ve been thinking it, the packets are so large and the papers in some months…I was wondering what everybody’s thought was if we received it electronically or would that be too much of a burden on the City for scanning?

Mr. Fusco: I assume that ultimately that’ll happen one of these years but right now I personally prefer this methodology.

Ms. Mattiney: I’m not willing to make that many colored copies in my home….

Mr. Darrow: That was the thing. Because we would either have make the copies ourselves or we would bring laptops if we have them to review them. That’s why I didn’t know…I want to see how you folks felt.
Mr. Tamburrino: I was talking earlier, what I was suggesting was at the meetings we would project a video projector or LCD screen which we can the see the documents up here. But as far as coming home, all this here, electronic would be really inconvenient. It’s better actually with the packets, you just spread them out and look at them.

Mr. Baroody: I do everything electronically.

Ms. Marteney: I drive around town and I sit at a property and read it, I look and walk around…no. 
Mr. Baroody: …a young engineer with a scale…

Mr. Darrow: That’s why I wanted everybody’s opinion on it.

Mr. Fusco: We’re asking our applicants to provide x number of copies of everything for the very reason that we know packets are being…

Mr. Darrow: Oh the City’s not…

Ms. Marteney: The City doesn’t need copies, the applicant has to bring all that in.

Mr. Darrow: Yeah, I forgot about that.

Ms. Calarco: I like it electronically but I like to be able to have it here…if I do electronic, I’m going to have the laptop here or I’m going to be lost, I’m going to have to make copies of everything.

Mr. Tamburrino: The problem with electronic copies is this and in my job I deal with that stuff all the time, you can’t do a side-by-side comparison very easily because you can’t.

Mr. Darrow: You have to be able to have a split screen. Yes…

Mr. Tamburrino: You want a split screen, you’ve got a triple screen…

Mr. Darrow: I got my answer. I think the important thing is I got my answer. So, also I wanted to put forth that everybody knew, I asked Rick Tamburrino to be the Vice-Chair and he graciously accepted. So, in my absence Rick will fill in. Is There anything else that anybody has under housekeeping?

Ms. Marteney: Tell me why I received this. 
Mr. Darrow: I don’t know what it is.

Ms. Marteney: You got it in an e-mail….

Mr. Darrow: I got a lot of papers, I don’t know what that one is.

Ms. Marteney: 60 Mary Street. The gentleman is talking about it…

Mr. Hicks: That application would be for that letter is for an application that was supposed to be in by the cutoff deadline and the application never showed and we sent those out because we wanted to make sure that everything got with the packets. So, that should be off until next month.

Ms. Marteney: Okay, so we’ll just keep that with the other stuff. Okay.

Mr. Darrow: Yeah we only have Burt Ave tabled for next month. Well if there’s no other discussion, a motion that we dismiss. All in favor, Aye. We’re closed. 
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